
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

      BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

May 2, 2024 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. APPOINTMENT TO FILL THE VACANCY ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO GOV.
CODE SEC.1780/BOARD POLICY B-90

Board to continue deliberations on the Board Director Vacancy.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR:

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for April 17 and  April 18, 2024

B. Receive and Ratify the May 2, 2024 Warrant Check Register

C. Approve Murray attending the Residuals and Biosolids Conference June 18-21  in Oaklahoma City

D. Approve Murray attending the CASA Annual Conference July 31-Aug 2 in Monterey

E. Approve Yezman attending the CASA Annual Conference July 31-Aug 2 in Monterey

F. Approve  Proposing an Election Resolution 2024-2327

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Items B through E. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through F. 

4:05 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

4:00 PM 

4:20 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


May 2, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal

2. Collections/Safety/Maintenance Department Report – written

3. Operations Department Report – written

4. Solar Project Update – verbal

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee,  Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee,
CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports

2. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

3. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee,
FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

4. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

6. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

5:40 PM 

5:45 PM 

5:30 PM 

4:30 PM 

2



May 2, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

CLOSED SESSION: 

8. CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR  –   Two items: 1) First Property: McPhail
Site (APNs 180-151-18, 180-161-10, and 180-161-09) McPhail: Approximately 9.76 acres of land
(APNs 180-151-18, 180-161-10, & 180-161-09), located at 1565 Vendola Drive, San Rafael, in
the County of Marin (unincorporated), that served as the location of the former McPhail Elementary
School, which consists of vacant land and secured structures ("McPhail Site").  Agency negotiator:
Curtis Paxton, General Manager. Negotiating parties: San Rafael City Elementary School District.
Under negotiation: Instruction to negotiator will concern both price and terms of payment.
2) Second Property: Old Gallinas Site  (APN 180-123-01) : Approximately 7.9 acres of developed land
(APN 180-123-01), located at 251 N. San Pedro Road, San Rafael, in the County of Marin 

(unincorporated), consisting of classroom buildings and athletic field ("Old Gallinas Site"). Agency 
negotiator: Curtis Paxton, General Manager. Negotiating parties: San Rafael City Elementary 
School District. Under negotiation: Instruction to negotiator will concern both price and terms of 
payment. 

9. ADJOURNMENT

FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: MAY 6,  MAY 16  AND JUNE 6, 2024 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before  April 29, 2024 4:00 pm I posted the Agenda for the Board 
Meeting of said Board to be held  on  May 2, 2024, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley Road, 
Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: April 25, 2024 

_______________________ 
Teresa Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig K. Murray, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

6:20 PM 

5:50 PM 

3



 

 
 

 

5/2/2024 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



 

 
 

 

5/2/2024 
 

 APPOINTMENT TO FILL THE VACANCY ON THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 
 Discussion 
 

AGENDA ITEM 2 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



5/2/2024 

RECEIVE AND RATIFY MAY 2, 2024 WARRANT CHECK REGISTER 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting

 Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting

□ Verbal Report

□ Presentation

AGENDA ITEM 3B 

12



13



14



15



 

 

Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: Teri Lerch, District Secretary 
   (415) 526-1510; tlerch@lgvsd.org 

Mtg. Date: May 2, 2024 

Re: November 2024 Election – Resolution 2024-2327 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable     X        . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to review and approve Resolution 2024-2327 – A Regularly Scheduled Election to Be Held 
in this Jurisdiction; Requesting the Board of Supervisors to Consolidate with Any other Election 
Conducted on Said Date, and Requesting Election Services by the Marin County Elections 
Department. 

BACKGROUND  
Staff received the attached email from the County of Marin Registrar of Voters office regarding the 
November 2024 Election Notification for Districts. Directors Murray and Robards are up for re-
election (4-year terms) as well as the 2-year term (Director Ford) Board vacancy.  A Resolution 
requesting consolidation and elections services is required (see attached). A Confirmation of 
District boundaries and a Confirmation of the Current Roster are also required. 
 
Please note the nomination filing period for all candidates  is July 15 through August 9. 
Incumbents must file during this period.  The candidate manual will not be ready until late June. It 
will be emailed to applicable Board members when available. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Statewide General Election – November 8, 2022  
Director, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Elected Term 
Megan Clark 2022 to 2026 
Ronald Ford (now vacant) 2022-2026 
Crystal J. Yeaman 2022-2026 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Currently estimated at $25,000. 
 

Item 
Number______3F________ 

GM Review   _____CP_______ 

 

16



Resolution No. 2024-2327                                                                                                          Page 1 of 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2327 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 

A REGULARLY SCHEDULED ELECTION TO BE HELD IN THIS JURISDICTION; 

REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO CONSOLIDATE WITH ANY 

OTHER ELECTION CONDUCTED ON SAID DATE, AND REQUESTING 

ELECTION SERVICES BY THE MARIN COUNTY ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT  

 

 

RESOLVED, by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin 

County, California, as follows: 

                                                                                                                                     
WHEREAS, it is the determination of said governing body the regularly scheduled 

election to be held on the 5th day of November, 2024, at which election the issue to be 

presented to the voters shall be to elect the following members to the Board of Directors: 

 
Number of Regular Term Positions (4-year)    __2____                

Number of Short Term Positions (2-year)        __1____ 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, pursuant to Elections Code §10002,             

the Board of Supervisors of the County of Marin is hereby requested to: 

1) Consolidate said election with any other applicable election conducted on the 

same day in the manner prescribed in Elections Code §10418; 

2) Authorize and direct the Elections Department at District expense, to provide all 

necessary election services and to canvass the results of said election. 

Payment for the publication of a candidate’s statement of qualification is the responsibility of the 

Candidate. 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 

I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 
Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on May 2, 2024, by the following vote of the 
members thereof: 

 

AYES, and in favor thereof, Members:   
NOES, Members:    
ABSENT, Members:  
ABSTAIN, Members:   
             ________________________________ 
              Teresa L. Lerch, District Secretary 
              Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
APPROVED: 

 
______________________________________    (seal)  
Craig K. Murray, Board President          

17



1

Teresa Lerch

From: Dan Miller <Dan.Miller@MarinCounty.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 11:50 AM
Subject: Nov 2024 Election Notice - Sanitary Districts
Attachments: Measure Guide.pdf; Alto Sanitary District.pdf; Homestead Valley Sanitary District.pdf; Las 

Gallinas Valley Sanitary District.pdf; Novato Sanitary District.pdf; Richardson Bay Sanitary 
District.pdf; Sanitary District No. 5.pdf; Sausalito Marin City Sanitary District.pdf

Hello everyone! 
Board member elections are scheduled to be held on November 5, 2024. 
Attached are two documents for each district. Please complete your district documents and return to me by 
email no later than June 28.  
Discrepancies of office terms must be addressed right away. 

Also by June 28, please deliver your resolution calling the election that: 
1. requests consolidation with the statewide election; 
2. lists the offices to be voted upon; 
3. acknowledges reimbursement to the county for the services rendered; 
4. acknowledges that the election will be held and conducted in the manner prescribed in Section 10418. 

The pertinent candidate filing dates are July 15 thru August 9 for all candidates. Incumbents must file during 
this period if they wish to continue. 
If an incumbent does not file by August 9, the nomination filing period will be extended to August 14 to those 
other than incumbents. 

If applicable, vacancies occurring prior to June 28, 2024, of seats with terms ending December 2026 must be 
open for nomination as a Short-Term contest (2-year term).  
If you wish to receive our not-yet-available candidate manual please let me know your preference: hard copy 
or e-version. 
Included with this notification is the updated Measure Guide for November 2024. 
Thank you, 
 
Dan Miller  
Political Reform Filings & Election Services 
County of Marin Elec ons Department 
PO Box E, San Rafael, CA 94913 
415 473 6437 
dan.miller@marincounty.gov 
 
STAY CONNECTED: 

             

 
Email Disclaimer: https://www.marincounty.org/main/disclaimers  

18



NOTICE OF ELECTIVE OFFICES 

To Be Reviewed And Completed By Jurisdiction’s Representative 
Please complete and return this document by email to the Marin County Elections Department. 

Jurisdiction: 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
300 Smith Ranch Rd The scheduled candidate election 
San Rafael CA  94903 for this jurisdiction is November 5, 2024 

Short Term & Full Term Seats Ending December 2024 

Directors: Craig Murray 
Gary Robards 
vacant seat (election to complete Ford’s term) 

Full Term Seats Ending December 2026  

Directors: Megan Clark  
Crystal Yezman 

Payment for the publication of the candidate’s statement of qualifications in the Voter Information Guide 

is the responsibility of the ____________________________. (candidate or district) 

I confirm that the above information is correct and I have indicated any changes as necessary. 

Signature of representative _________________________________ 

Title of representative _____________________________________ 

Date ____________________ If available, place 
seal of Jurisdiction here 

19



MARIN COUNTY ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT 
JURISDICTIONAL BOUNDARY CONFIRMATION  

For the November 5, 2024 Statewide General Election 
 
 

Elections Code §12262: Jurisdictional boundary changes occurring less than 125 days 
before an election shall not be effective for purposes of that election. 

 

Name of Jurisdiction: _____________________________________________________ 
      Please Print 

 

As the representative of the above-named jurisdiction, I understand that boundary changes 
must be completed and duly recorded with the Marin County Elections Department no later 
than 125 days prior to the upcoming election. 

To the best of my knowledge the boundary map of the above-named jurisdiction is current 
and assumably equates to the voter database of the Marin County Elections Department. 

 
 
 
Signed _____________________________________          Date__________________ 

 

 

Name of Representative: _______________________________________________ 
      Please Print 

 

Title of Representative: _______________________________________________ 
      Please Print 

 
 

Please complete and email this form to danmiller@marincounty.org.   

            
Rev. 3/14/24 

 

 

20



 

 
 

 

5/2/2024 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4.1 

21



Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report – Jan.- Mar 2024 05/02/2024 

Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report Page 1 of 4 

SSO SPILL SUMMARY 

• No Spills to Report

KEY MAINTENANCE PROJECTS - Maintenance was completed on the following: 

Biowheels Repairs 

• 17 Pin replacement

• 26 Link replacement

Emergency Repairs 

• No emergency repairs this quarter.

Key Maintenance Projects 

• Completed 894 Routine Preventative Maintenance Work Orders for the Treatment
Plant, Pump Stations, and Reclamation areas.

• Installed a new corrected Memorial plaque on bench for Judy Schriebman.

• New installation of electrical outlets for pumps on return activated sludge (RAS) line.

• New installation of electrical outlets for final effluent sampler.

• New installation of uninterruptible power supply (UPS) for Internet and Supervisory
Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) operations during power outage.

• Replaced Allen Bradley PowerFlex 400 Rockwell Automation (VFD) variable frequency
drive at Descanso Pump station.

• Replaced Ethernet Switch (Moxa) for reuse water distribution pumps.

• (400) Fleet Maintenance Inspections

SAFETY ISSUES AND TRAINING 

• Fall Protection/Portable Ladder Training – Du-All

• Bloodborne Pathogens Training – Du-All

• Emergency Action Plan Training – Du-All

• Silica Exposure Training – Du-All

• Hearing Conservation Training

• Implemented SafetyPlus Training Portal

OTHER 

• Collection System – Pump Station Maintenance (Routine)

• Air Release Valve Maintenance (Quarterly)

Agenda item 4.2

22



  Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report – Jan.- Mar 2024 05/02/2024 

   
 

 

Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report Page 2 of 4 

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS 

• None 

 

PERFORMANCE METRICS 

Collection System Cleaning and CCTV Inspection 

• Flushed/Rodded = 114,232 feet; Percent of District = 20.6%. 

• CCTV Inspected = 46,333 feet; Percent of District = 8.4% 

• Manhole inspections performed = 559 

• USA Ticket Work Orders = 498 

CNG Fueling Stations 

• Smith Ranch Fuel Station  

o 12 Fill-ups  

o Total Diesel Gallon Equivalent (DGE) = 314 DGE 

o Average MPG = 5.01 MPG/3-month miles driven = 1,409  

 

Pump Station Highlight – Hawthorne (2 – 10hp Flygt pumps) 

Location: 403 Vendola Drive, San Rafael Ca. 94903 

Parcel 180-041-16 

Date Constructed: 1966 

Expansions: 1990, 2003 

Estimated wet well capacity: approximately 6,400 gallons  

 

 

 
 

 

 

23



  Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report – Jan.- Mar 2024 05/02/2024 

   
 

 

Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report Page 3 of 4 

Lateral Construction and Repair Inspections 

• Applications received = 39; Actual Inspections Performed = 30 

• Full Replacement Inspections Performed = 16 Full Replacements 

• Cleanout Installation Inspections Performed = 2 Cleanout Installations 

• Spot Repairs/Upper/Lower Replacements Performed = 12 partial replacements or spot 

repairs 

 

 

 
 

 

Sewer Lateral Ordinance No. 180 - Number of Applications Processed 

• Home Sale Applicants = 40 received 

• Building Permit ($30,000 valuation) Applicants = 0 received 

 

      
 

53%

7%

40%

Lateral Construction and Repair 
Inspections

Full Lateral Replacement

Cleanout Installation Inspection

Partial Replacement - Spot
Repair/Upper/Lower Lateral

100%

0%

Applications - Home Sale vs Building 
Permit (Triggers)

Home Sales

Building Permit ($30,000
Valuation)

24



  Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report – Jan.- Mar 2024 05/02/2024 

   
 

 

Collections/Maintenance/Safety Department Report Page 4 of 4 

 

 

Sewer Lateral Ordinance No. 180 - Letter of Findings  

• Home Sale Letter of Findings Issued = 34; 5 - recommend replacement, 20 -have defects 

that require monitoring, 8 - no work or monitoring required, 1 – Incomplete 

Applications, 0 – Illegal connection 

 

       
 

*Total # of Recommended Lateral Replacements vs Actual Replacements since January 2020 

will be provided on the 2024 2nd Quarter Department Report. 

23%

59%

15%
0%

3%

Letter of Findings Issued

No Work Required

Has Defects That Require
Monitoring

Recommend Replacement

Illegal Connections

Incomplete Application

25



Plant Operations Department Report – January - March 2024 5/2/2024  

Plant Operations Department Report Page 1 of 5 

CRITICAL PROCESS 

• Treatment plant effluent was discharged to Miller Creek during this period, with short
duration pond diversions to perform instrument maintenance or equipment repair
work.

• Four Biowheel aeration trains were in operation for all but the last two weeks of this

quarter.

• Biowheel drive chain link failures were observed by operations staff and replaced by

maintenance staff throughout the quarter.

• There were 4 days in January and 2 days in February when effluent blending was

required during periods of high rainfall.

• March - A new aeration basin drain line leak was discovered by staff and repaired by a

contractor.

NON-CRITICAL PROCESS 

• February – District lab’s Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP)

certification renewed under new National Environmental Laboratory Accreditation

Program rules.

• March- Abraham Clark fills the last vacant Plant Operator III position in the Operations

group.

• March – Plant operators were cross trained to perform limited tasks, normally assigned

to lab staff, to improve operational resiliency.

• March – Operations staff attended “Biological Nitrogen Removal” and “Process Control

– Utilizing Lab Data to Control & Troubleshoot” training via remote meeting.

• March – Operations staff participated in group tour of the Central Contra Costa

Sanitation District Treatment Facility in Martinez.

• March – Operations staff attended SmartSOP Training. SmartSOP is a no cost

development and consumption tool for standard operating procedures.

PERFORMANCE METRICS 
Sewage Treated 

• 4.4 million gallons per day average daily influent flow from January through March.
Recycled Water Production 

• 1.5 million gallons of recycled water was pumped to North Marin Water District

• 24.1 million gallons of recycled water was pumped to Marin Municipal Water District

• 17.2 million gallons of recycled water was used for internal needs at LGVSD WWTP

(higher than average use resulting from a leak that was discovered by staff and repaired

by a contractor)

Reclamation 

• Pond Levels Beginning of January – Pond #1 = 5.7’ - Pond #2 = 5.56’ ~ 63% of Capacity

• Pond Levels at the End of March – Pond #1 = 4.9’ - Pond #2 =4.6’ ~ 53% of Capacity

Agenda item 4.3

26



   Plant Operations Department Report – January - March 2024 5/2/2024   
 

 

Plant Operations Department Report  Page 2 of 5 

 

Solar Power Generation 

• 11,500 kWh offsetting approximately $3,450 in PG&E/MCE electrical consumption costs 

using an average rate of $0.30/kWh. Inverters A & B were shut down 12/2021 for safety. 

Biogas Utilization 

• Total Digester Gas Produced – 3,652,856 scf – Microturbines at 43% uptime producing a 

total of 31,503 kWh, offsetting approximately $9,451 in PG&E/MCE electrical 

consumption costs using an average rate of $0.30/kWh. Microturbines uptime is 

typically less during winter months. This is mainly due to the digestion process’s 

increased need for heating and the relatively small amount of low-pressure gas storage 

which would allow the boiler and microturbines to operate without the risk of 

automatic shutdown from low digester gas pressure conditions.  

 

 

 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Jan - Mar  2024
3,447,332 scf

Apr - Jun  2023
3,303,680 scf

Jul - Sep  2023
3,478,547 scf

Oct - Dec  2023
3,470,130 scf

2023-24 Biogas Utilization

Waste Gas Burner Microturbine RNG Vehicle/Boiler Digester Gas Boiler

27



   Plant Operations Department Report – January - March 2024 5/2/2024   
 

 

Plant Operations Department Report  Page 3 of 5 

NPDES PERMIT COMPLIANCE 

All water quality parameters met or exceeded permissible limits for this period with the 

exception of a single effluent cyanide (CN) sample result of 15ug/l on Feb. 6 which exceeded 

the total maximum daily limit (14 ug/l). The result on this day for Influent CN level was non-

detectable. Sample results for prior and post day’s values for effluent CN levels were below 

permitted limits. The District’s contract laboratory found nitrate in the sample that exceeded 

the maximum daily limit. Nitrate interferes with analytical methods for determining CN. A 

change to the District’s sample preparation procedure was recommended by the contract 

laboratory to mitigate the presence of interference constituents. Monthly reports were 

submitted to their respective regulatory agencies in accordance with permit requirements. On 

average, laboratory staff perform 138 process control and 25 regulatory compliance analyses 

per week during this reporting period. 

LGVSD Recycled Water Facility Overview 

The LGVSD Recycled Water Facility produces Title 22 compliant disinfected tertiary recycled 

water from the wastewater treatment plant’s secondary treated effluent. North Marin Water 

District (NMWD) and Marin Water (MMWD) receive LGVSD product water. Both partner 

agencies have “distributor only” roles and must abide by the statewide requirements related to 

the customer use of recycled water, operation and maintenance, and any monitoring and 

reporting requirements for their recycled water distribution systems. 

System Features and Regulatory Requirements 

Peak capacity – 5.4 mgd, Firm capacity – 4 mgd 

In 2023 the maximum single day production was 2 mgd . 

(MMWD = 72%, LGVSD = 15%, NMWD = 13%) 

Technology: ZeeWeed 1500 ultrafiltration membrane module construction is a capped end PVC 

cylinder housing PVDF hollow fiber filtration material with .02-micron nominal pore diameter. 

The system is a pressurized outside-in flow design. Two separate maintenance skids are installed 

to support efficient filter operation. One is used for routine cleaning in compressed air/filtered 

water backwash cycles and a second deep cleaning or descaling chemical clean-in-place (CIP) 

unit is used to prolong the useful life of the modules. Membrane Trains 1 & 2 have 48 modules 

each and Trains 3 & 4 have 144 modules each.  

The system is provisioned with automatic diversion of product water that does not meet 

specifications for turbidity or chlorine residual. The diverted water can be reprocessed by the 

recycled water facility. Filtered water from the membrane system fills a nearby wet well with 

28



   Plant Operations Department Report – January - March 2024 5/2/2024   
 

 

Plant Operations Department Report  Page 4 of 5 

three pumps to convey water to the MMWD disinfection and short-term storage tank located 

on the hillside, west of the wastewater treatment plant. This steel reinforced concrete tank has 

two compartments, an outer ring with baffles (355,000 gal) used for disinfection which 

overflows to a center clear well (685,000 gal) used to supply the distribution pump station. Four 

distribution pumps supply product water to our partner agencies’ distribution systems as well as 

process and maintenance water used within the treatment plant.  

Regulatory Compliance: Facility is operating under the Statewide General Order for Recycled 

Water 2016-0068-DWQ. 

Turbidity requirements: ≤0.2 NTU not more than 5% percent of the time within a 24-hour period 

and 0.5 NTU single sample maximum. Total Coliform requirements: ≤2.2 MPN rolling 7-day 

median, ≤23 MPN 30-day period, and ≤240 MPN maximum for a single sample.  

Disinfection requirements: C*T is (Chlorine Concentration x Modal Contact Time) value of ≥450 

milligram-minutes per liter and must maintain at least 90-minute modal contact time at peak 

flow rate through the chlorine contact chamber. 

  

 

 

 

29



   Plant Operations Department Report – January - March 2024 5/2/2024   
 

 

Plant Operations Department Report  Page 5 of 5 

LGVSD Recycled Water Process Diagram (Figure 1) Reference Items 

Abbreviations: [CCC – Chlorine Contact Chamber], [CIP – Clean-In-Place], [Cl2 – Sodium 

Hypochlorite], [Psi – pounds per square inch] 

Red dashed line between distribution pump station and partner recycled water storage tanks 

delineates LGVSD production responsibility from partner agency distribution systems.  

30



Membrane Feed Channel

Wastewater Treatment Plant Effluent

30 Psi

CIP

Backwash

 CCC/Clearwell Supply Wetwell

Filtered Water

Train 3Train 4

Train 1Train 2

MMWD CCC/Clearwell

CL2

LGVSD Recycled Water Process

Distribution Pumps

NMWD

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

MMWDMMWD

Reclamation Storage Pond Return

 

Figure 1 
31



 

 
 

 

5/2/2024 
 

SOLAR PROJECT UPDATE 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM  4.4 

32



 

 
 

 

5/2/2024 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports 
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, Engineering Ad 
Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc 
Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-
Committee re: STPURWE, Marin Special Districts 
Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 6A 
                                                                                 DATE: May 2, 2024             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

44



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\05022024\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

5/2/2024 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 6B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



 

 
 

 

5/2/2024 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

 Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8 

68


	Agenda 05022024
	1 Public Comment
	2 Appointment to Fill Board Vacancy
	3A Board Minutes 04172024 and 04182024
	3B Check Register 05022024
	3C Murray Conference Request Residuals an Biosolids
	3D Murray Conference Request CASA conference
	3E Yezman Conference Request CASA conference
	3F November 2024 Election
	4.1 General Manager Report
	4.2 Collections BiMonthly Report Jan-March Report
	4.3 Plant Ops Jan - Mar  2024 Report
	4.4 Solar Project Update
	5 Board Member Reports
	5.3 Murray Other Report
	6A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7 Various Industry Articles
	8 Closed Session



